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PIONEER WOMEN OF MIDDLEBURG,
CUYAHOGA COUNTY.

18156—1840,

“Going West"” was a great undertak-
ing In 1809, when Jared Hickox and fam-
ily made their way from Waterbury,
Conn., to Cuyahoga county, Ohlo, and
Incated In “number slx, range four-
teen'"—since 1820 Middleburg township,
Mrs, Rachel (Merrill) Hickox “kept
house™ In thelr wagon while her hus-
band and sons felled treeg and bullt
their log cabln, which, though small,
was large enough for its furnishings,
the most Important being the children,

four sons and as many daughters. Thtf
Hickoxes were the first permanent se‘
tlers in the township. They chose
location which included Lake Abrafh
because of its fish and excellent V&
rfety of frost grapes in the locality.
little north of Lake Abram was Pod .
Swamp, in the center of which was .
plece of firm ground that later tars
the hiding place of a band of m’;natr
feiters, who, for years, carried on
business undiscovered.
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old hardships and dangers feil
lot of the brave woman, already
iddle life, who so willingly d4id
1 share of work, and did it well,
her in baking Johnnycakes, heteh-
‘flax, running bullets, or burning
h. Indeed, Mrs. Hickox never gave
“thought to the

: TSPHERE" QUESTION,
ike other women who soon fol-
‘her to the unbroken wilderness,
out to its grand solution the
s of woman's fitness for herole
ivor in the interest of home,
h, and state.
year following thelr arrival Mr,
t went to Newburg, then larger
Hleveland, to purchase a yoke of
Hlig path was marked by blazed
. A8 he did not return at the ex-
time members of the family went
rch of him., for the dense forest
full of danger, and were horrified
finding his lifeleas body not many

from his home., He had unyoked
oxi¢n, and was found in a sitting
i leaning agalnst a tree, where
1itd breathed his life away, evidently
out a strugele.
ere were neither undertakers nor
1118 In that lonely region, but from
‘boards of their wagon box they
his coffin, and, with simple rites,
im to rest on his own farm, later
n as the Hepburn place,
- next year his married som, Na-
tl, fell a wvictim to typhus fever,
deadly scourge of the new settle-

Hls grave, with those of numer-
Ilfni:&nﬂnntl, may still be seen in
dd-time burial place. Two years
Lthe arrival of the Hickox family
m Fowls and a younger brother
*d from Connecticut to Middle-
Abram, with but $2.50 in his
‘t, selected his farm on what has'
 been known as the Fowls road,
Bion formed the acquaintance of
~Ann Hickox, who bacame his
n 1812, This was the first couple
. in Middleburg, which at this
“ontained five or six families, scat-
and defenseless, whom the declar-
f war had filled with apprehen-
A blockhouse had been erected
lumbia, where the people

FLED FOR SAFPETY

threatened with assaults by Tn-
At such times all the able-
4 Ten for miles around were called
defense. When the last call
Made Rachel Ann Fowls refused
Lo the little fortress whither her
had summoned, and re-
24 In her home zlone, with the
tion of the young brother of Mr,
they beilng for a time the only

i

white persons in Mlddleburg. Not long
after, In the shadow of isolation and
alarm, a baby came to the young moth.
eér In the Fowls cabin, the first white
ehlld born in the townahlip.

This daughter, Lucy, became WMrs.
Nathan Gardner, whose long married
life was spent in the nelghborhood
where she was born. Her only daugh-
ter. a sweet-spirited, beautiful girl,
married Charlea Thorp, o. Warrens-
ville, where she dled. Mrs., Fowls was
the mother of ten children. Her fifty-
five years wers marked with patient,
fearless devotion to duty. A daughter,
Mrs. Roxanna Fowls, |s still living in
Cleveland.

The other daughters of Jared Hickox,
8r.,, Mrs. Lucy Osborn, Mra, Hannsah
Dillingham, and Mrs. Esther Dille,
were prajseworthy women. Erl Hick-
ox was eighteen years old when the
family came to Ohlo. Five years later
he married Alma Hoadley, of Colum-
bia, where, after a protracted resldence
in Middleburg, they =pent the closing
vears of thelr lives. This family con-
sisted of five daughters and a son,
Azor, who dled when elght years of age.

The training of young ideas was be-
gun in geaszon in ploneer times. Little
Jemima Hickox, when four and one-
half yvears of age, was sent to live with
her grandparents at Columbla that she
might go to gchool. Her teacher was
Eetsey Nesbitt. It was not unusual for
children even younger to be made to
study and to work, But they grew and
thrived, were strong-limbed, eclear-
brained ,and gelf-reliant to a degree not
¥yet excelled by our modern kinder-
garteners. -

One day Miriam and Jemima Hickox
were permitted to go to a neighbor's
half a mile distant to spend the day
while thelr parents went to Ceolumbla,
The children, aged eight and six re-
spectively, started off In high glee, The
were familiar with the path throug
the woods, and were not at all afraid
untll about half through, when Miriam
saw a huge bear. They did not scream
nor cry, but turned and ran home.
Thelr parenta had gone, and the fire
"Il.'il carefully covered with ashes. Be-

ng
SENSBIBLE LITTLE MAIDENS,

they did not rake It open, but cuddled
under the covers of thelr trundle-bed,
scarcely daring to breathe, lest the bear
would filnd them. After a while a
nelghbor, who also was on hils way to
Columbia, chanced to ecall, and =oon
as possible Informed Mr. and Mrs,
Hickox of the uncomfortable sltuation
of their children, whom, on thelr return,
they found in bed, where they had lain
nearly all day.
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Another Lime Mr., and Mrs, Hickox
went to i meeting held in Ephralm
Vaughn's log house, which stood on
the site occupled later by John Bald-
win's old red house, leaving the chil-
dren at home alone. The time seemed
long, and while watching for their par-
enta' homecoming, they sawtwo Indians
croseing the little clearing—coming to-
ward the house. Terribly frightened
the children ran and hid behind & log,
but the Indians found them, and =ald
they were after a lost gaddle, which Mr.
Hickox had found; then went away.
The little girls feared their parents had
been Killed, but were soon overjoyved by
thelr safe return.

Mr. Eri Hickox bullt the first frame
house in Middleburg. Mrs. Hickox
came to Columbia with her father's
family from Connecticut in 1807. She
was twelve years old. Several others
were in the company. They were two
months In reaching Buffalo, west of
which there were no roads, Here the
party separated; some declded to con-
tinue the journey by land, the others,
among whom were Alma's parents, by
water. After a long and terrific battle
with winds and waves they reached
Cleveland, where they were joyfully
received by the rest of the company,
who had arrived several days before,
At this time there were but seven log
houses in Cleveland. One of those who
walked from Buffalo was Mrs. Bela
Bronson, who carrled her child in her
airms to the place, fifty miles west of
Erie, where they were met by teams
sent for them from Cleveland. The
child was Shalack Bronson, who after-
wiard became the eminent Episcopal
vlergyman and president of Kenyon
College,

Mrs, Mirlam Baker, Mrs. Weltha
8abin, Mrs. Harrlet Vaughn, Mrs. Al-
mi Wilder, and Mrs. Rachel Jemima
Hoadley, daughters of Mr, and Mrzs. Ell
Hickox, were noble women. ‘The last
mentioned, Mrs. Hoadley, resldes In
Cleveland with her daughter, Mrs. Dr.
Van Norman. She is a bright, intelli-
Eent, lovable woman, to whom the his-
turlian is largely indebted for data.

Mention has been made of Nathaniel
Hickox, who died two vears after his
arrival, HIis five children found homes
In BEuclid. His widow, whnho married
Roswald Scoville, was ill at a time when
an alarm caused by the report, ““The
savages are coming!”® drove the terri-
fled settlers to the blockhouse at Hud-
son, thirty miles away. Having no
other means of conveyance, Mr. Sco-
ville securely tied a feather bed uponan
unbroken pet colt, on which he placed
his wife and three weeks old baby, they
riding and the husbanda leading the

——

colt through tangled woods the entirg
distance, but they reached the block.
house in safety.

Among Mliddleburg's ploneer women
deserving honorable mention were (ha
wives of the Vaughns, Ephraim. Rich
ard, and Jonalhan, Mrs. Meeker, ang
Mrs, Daniel Fajrchlld. Ephraim
Vaughn was commissioned by the Goy.
ernor as the fNrst justice of the peace
The first school was taught In his
house, 1822-23, by Levl Castle, after-
ward a prominent Methodist minister
of the Genesee conference, His mother,
Olive (Bronson) Castle, was the cour-
ageous woman who rode from Watep-
bury, Conn. ,to Ohio on horseback alone.
Years later she and her widowed
daughter and her two girls

JOINED THE SHAKERS

at Warrensville, where they spént the
remainder of their lives. Mpme. Castle's
brother came from Connecticut on foot
in 1806, but soon returned in the =ame
way. Four yvears later he walked back
again toe Ohjo, and settled here. When
the war of 1812 broke out, and the set-
tlers were in danger of Indian massa-
cres, his wife, with four children, the
eldest a girl of thirteen, the youngest
an Infant boy, left Cleveland for Cun-
necticut with a horse, saddle, and
‘bridie, The Jjourney reguired four
weeks—the Ttesolute mwother walking
the entire distance. Three years later
she started back, better equipped [or
the long, wearlsome journey, hersell
and children In & lumber wagon; but
her money gave out, which left her
stranded on the road. BShe then hired
out the two oldest daughters at Ity
cents A week, while she worked f{or her
board and that of the younger children.
When enough money had been earned
she hitched up and continued the jour-
ney, reaching Cleveland in March, 1816

About this time several families were
added to the little colony, among these
Thaddeus Lathrop, wife, and filve chil-
dren, the eldest, Susan, nine yvears old.
Susan became the wife of Benjam!in
Tuttle, who erected a small shop on the
bank of Rocky River, where he tann®
leather and made shoes. Susan waa J;:
bright, handy girl, a talloress. It
probable she learned her trade from
her mother, who was a capable H'-:;;
England woman, Susan s credit
with having made the coat, veft, ﬂ“ir
trousers worn by ‘Mr, Tuttle at ther®
wedding. Soon after they began l‘lﬂ‘-‘-“’_
keeping, eshe made a coat for the Wi
ler and took for pay a barrel of ﬂ“ﬁe'
The family moved to Strongavile
where the closing yvears of this estim
ble couple were spent.
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In 1816 a Methodlst camp meeting was
d near Cleveland, and some of the
=bu people attended (t and be-
deeply Impressed with the impor-
of religious advantages. They be-
olding meetings In each other's
, elnging, praying, and exhorting
gch fervor that several were con-
. Soon after, Rev, Jacob Ward,
agnswick came and formed a Meth-
‘Boclety, the first religious organi-
in the townshlp.
and Mra, Wheeler Wellman were
ed the next year by Mr. Well-
father-in-law, Bolomon L.ovejoy,
{nee Sirena Bitlie), four sons, and
aughter, Ablgail, who married
rles Bassett.

. THE LOVEJOY FAMILY

= of the best known In Middle-
®. Solomon Lovejoy bullt the first
rn in the townshlp—it is still occu-
by his descendants.
~and Bilas Gardner married sls-
Jemima and Sally Wooley, of Ot-
county, New York, and located on
farms In the eastern part of the
ship. Their log cabins soon gave
 for comfortable homes, the some-
portentious red farmhouse with
eor oval front windowe, built and
ed by 8ilas Gardner, has but re-
¥ disappeared. Mrs. Parley Bas-
‘was a sister of Paul and Silas
FAner.
ddleburg township was organized
1820. There was little Immigra-
uring the half-dozen years that
] It 1s recorded that immi-
s were repelled by the wet soll,
the more pleasantly located set-
“number five” declared that *“if
ourg were not fastened onto
eville it would sink.” But thils
' town ‘had sure footing., Axes
‘ung with a will. Sunshine flood-
clearings, and rich farm lande
eveloped. Meanwhile, from al-
eless conditions, Mliddleburg's
women of courage, falth, and
were slowly but surely work-
WAy to ease and wealth.
* the advent of grist mills,
ol Qorn was common. The ear
€ld in a viee, and with a plane
€ the corn was shaved off very
. after belng boiled for hours,
with milk. It was called
a deliclous dish. The fat tried
.m.bu.r's meat was used for fry-
oughnuts and making short-cakes,
the hardy pioneers ate with
Ell-h. Several familleg settled
the old s coach route—later
-leveland and Wooster plke.
Daniel  Smith and family, from
erst, Mass., reached Middleburg in

1832 with five doliars, The first pay-
ment on the farm, ten dollars, was
raised by selling hickorynuts, Mre.
Smith, nee Nancy Willlams battled
bravely with privations in thoee early
days, but Hved to reap a rich harvest
of pood things. Of her nine children,
two were aughters, Mras, Emeline
Eliza Balley and Charlotte E.,, who was
born in this township. Mrs. Smith's
husband died socon after the celebra-
tion of thelr golden wedding. Cheer-
ful and happy through a long life, and
lovely in old age, she lived to be al-
moet ninetyv-six years old. Two years
before her death she knit a pair of
well-formed mittens, which her children
keep as a precious souvenir of her lat-
est Work.

Mr. William Fuller and wife (Char-
lotte Howe) located and built the first
frame house on what is still called the

BIG BEND

on the Wooster pike. Into thi® house,
with the Fullers, Danlel Smith moved
his family, to remain while he cleared
a site and built his Jog house, The
Fuller residence had but one room—aia
geam In the floor was the dividing line
between the two familles, and though
there were alght actlve young Smiths,
it Is sald not one crossed the forbidden
line during the entire year, and the
most amicable relatione existed all
around, Mrs. Fuller's husband was a
stage driver, and died of cholera in "34,

Lovinda Doty married Bamuel, a
brother of William Fuller, who died
early, leaving his young widow with
tWo SOns.

Another ploneer family that settled
in the locallty was that of Lebbeus
Pomeroy, from Otsego county, New
York. Mrs. Fanny (Norton) Pomeroy
had one son and four daughters, Mrs.
Sophrona Elders, Mra. Scophia Eggles-
ton, Mrs. Chloe Henry, and Melvina,
Mrs, Pomeroy was conspicuously con-
scientious, The then [armersa’ wives
and daughters not only epun the rolls,
colored the yarn, and knit socks, but
sold them At the storea for twenty-five
cenis per palr. In order to make it a
paying industry and get even with the
merchants, some of her neighboras would
knit loosely, then stretch and prees the
socks Into orthodox shape and size.
But Mrs. Pomeroy knit hers upon hon-
or and run the heels besides; for she
said she 4idn't want those who bought
them at the stores to be cheated.

Martha Hutchinson arrived from
Fort Ann, N. Y., In '32, and some years
later married Danlel Brown. She had
one daughter, Mras. Mary Jane Sim-
mers, Mrs. Brown wag very Iindus-
trious, a good, helpful neighbor. She
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was an adept at epinning and fine
woeaving—notably the fancy counter-
parea in vogue at that time. Mras.
Irown attained the age of ninety-one
YEears.

The coming of John Baldwin, Sr., and
wife, a fow years before, had given the
little settlement about thirty famillies,
a fresh start. The young wife, Mary
ID. Chappell, was a native of New Lon-
don, Conn. Hungry for an education
clrcumstances dld not permit her to se-
cure, she worked In a mill at one dol-
lar per week, and at the end of fAve
yvears had saved $200, with whlch she
had intended to go to school, but
changed her mind and loaned the
money tn An ambltious school teacher
whom she afterward married and ac-
companied to Ohlo,

Their Ing house had nelther windows
nor back to the chimney, but they took
immediate possession with a dry goods
box for their table, and the bedstead
made of poles fastened to the logs on
and supported

one =ide of the room,
with blecks of wood on the other, the
top covered with boards. Grandma

laldwin uaed to say: *“It made quite
a comfortable bed."

The circuit preachers, Revsa. Sheldon
and Mcintyvre, in homespun elothes, al-
wiys found the latchstring out ot the
1taldwin cabin, and lta*“'prophet’s cham-
ber® to which they elimbed on a lad-
dder, In course of time Mr, Baldwin
huilt a commaodious two-story frame
house, ever since known as the *‘old
red house,' a revered landmark but
recently quarried away.

The upper room of this house was de-
voted to divine service. There Mra.
Baldwin taught a Bible class in the
first Sabbath school organlzed In the
township, and there preaching, prayer,
clas=, and most impressive watch night
meetings were held. The cause of
Christian education In Berea had from
the first her hearty support.

The founding of Baldwin Institute
and Itz development to Baldwin Unl-
versity represents not only the wisdom
and benefactlon of her noble husband,
hut her counsels, prayers, and self-de-

nying gifts,
MOTHER BALDWIN

passed awnay., aged ninety-four years.
Mwr surviving children are ra. Ro-
annne Walker, Mra. Martha MeCullum,
and John DBaldwlin, Jr., all in Southern
hormes, i

There wan a difference of opinlon as
to the name of the fArst postoffice at
Lyceum village, as the few cabina were
called. One party wanted the name
Berea, the other Tabor. By throwing
up & half-dollar the guestion was de-

MIDDLEBURG.
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cided In favor of Berea—the mname by
which the gritty little oity which Is the
business and educational center of Mija.
dleburg has since been known.

About this time, through the Apency
of Messrs. Sheldon and Gilruth, the
“community"’’ was eatablished gopn
Rocky River, fiear the site of the de.
pot. The members were to hold their
property in common and all thelr busi.
ness was to be transacted by a board
of trade known as the Twelve Apos.
tles, But the system of Christian ego-
operation did not work well in farm.
ing under the direction of "Twelve
Apostles’” and the community was
abandoned.

With the twenty new families that
came in 1838 were Rev, H. O. 8heldon
and his wife, Ruth Bradley, a woman
of refilnement and lovely In person and
character. Her daughter Ruth, a fine
scholar, marrled Milton Baldwin and
died at her Western home. Mrs. Julla
Lee and Mrs. Rhoda Patterson are also
dauvghters of Mrs. Sheldon. The latter
atill resides in Berea,

Mr. and Mras. Pease (Lydia HRemels),
from lLee, Mass.,, joined the commun-
ity. “At that time,” her daughter
writes, “religlon was plenty and ra-
tlons scarce.” Of the four daughters
two are living—Emma and Lucy—who
were born in the *“old red house.”” Lucy
became Mrs. C. M. Stearns, for years

BEREA'S SWEET SINGER,

now a resident of Cleveland. George
R. Whitney and wife, Harriet Bronson,
came In 1837. They. too, joined the
“community.” Mrs. Whitney reared to
noble manhood and womanhood two
sons and two daughters. Harriet mar-
ried Frank Moe and died in a Western
State. Mary 1§ the wife of Rev. B. J.
Hoadley. She is one of those rarel¥
gecomplished women Itinerant Meth-
odist ministers sometimes win for
wives, ‘That gentle, patient woman,
Mra., Dr. McBride, nee Emma Henr¥,
spent many years in the guaint brick
cottage on River street, Her daugh-
ters, Agnes and Lucy. left Berea after
the death of their parents. Both are
highly esteemed. ‘Mrs. William Engle
was an ldeal ploneer woman, who did
her best under all elrcumstances an
looked hopefully forward to the ‘‘good
times coming,” which both she and her
husband have lived to realize, Their
sunset skies are golden.

Fannle Tinker and Clark Gosa were
married In Montague, Franklin county:
Mass,, in 1824, and ten years later c2
to Berea, occupying a log house sou
of the bridge, nearly opposite the Mur-
phy place. The Cleveland & Columbu®
Rallroad cuts through the then G088
farm. Mrs. Goss wasg a faithful mem”
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; erea Methodist Church NIty
: .'ﬂgu? five of the twelve children
living. At the home of her daugh-

vm. J. C. Walton, Bedford, O., the
mother fell asleep aged ninety-

sould be difficult now to find the
. where the little house stood Into
°h Nathaniel Moree, wife, and chlld
ed with their few belongings In
~ The locallty—valuable quarry
_has been worked for stone until
v It |8 a dreary waste.
- Ann Fitch) died a year after her

‘wears later Mr. Morse married
ﬁohhurds, 0f English parentage,
‘thout delay started for the
n home from Onondagua, N. Y.,
& by canal-boat to Cleveland,
& to Herea In & wagon owned by
addy’ Johnson. Another young mar-
:d couple, Mr. and Mrs. (Wallace)

itehy, had secured transportation
e same wagon, and had with them
cook stove. The road was rough

rt hilly, so that it required
mbined efforts of all the passen-
'_'rt.tm'ﬂn to hold it right side up.
er,

MS, BRIDES, AND COOK STOVE

*hed Berea wlthout accldent. Mra.
#e's  daughters, Laura (Mrs. An-
#8), of Cleveland, and Lois (Mrs.
, 0f Denver, are both graduates
dAwin Unlversity. Mrs. Morse re-
s in Cleveland and is held in grate-
"'mmrr by the members of the
ean Literary Socliety of Baldwin
"gity, of which she Is an honor-

member,
rétla M. Nelson, later Mrs,
- with her husband,

8 Peebles,
A home in Ohio in 1832, making
rney from South Amherst, Mass.,
rma with an ox team, at which
one of the oxen dled, which ne-
Hhdeabg & halt. The family found
ter In an abandoned log house, but
| learned that an acquaintance, Mr,
1€l Smith, was located in Middle~
nd decided to settle near byt
lldernesg farm was transformed
Y ¥edars of hard work to an at-
¢ rural home with pleasant sur-
and frujtful acres. Harrilet
e married Godfrey Brown. Her
LLt ﬁmurmd in Berea several years
n.t.ﬂ' Is the wife of Warner Ald-
Il.anhm home her mother en-
e Test aged ninety years, hav-
. cl_" ¥ spanned the century.
ant Fanes were a large and Im-
¥ hfl!nlly. Methodists of the early,
Ced type, who settled In the
Meastern part ol the townshilp, the
¥ being still known as the

“Crane neighborhood." The 8oONSs,
J Emes. Reason, and John, were preach-
ers. Elias became a physician of note.
The four daughters were excellent wo-
Nancy (Mrs. David Dorland) un-

men.
til recently lived in Berea. Mrs. Erma
was Indeed “a mother In Israel. In

old e, through years of severe auf-
fnrtn‘f, she was cheerful, submissive,
nnd gracious, Wltth the light of heaven
reflected In her face.

Mrs. Austin Fuller, nee Elizabeth
Taft, is a native of Mendon, N. Y. Bhe
was one of the girls who worked In the
glove factory in 1844, Mrs. Fuller and
Mrs. Patterson are the only persons in
Herea now who were here at that time.

Mrs, Matthew Reublin also came In
1844. She was the mother of elght chil-
dren. Martha, the only surviving
daughter, resides in Cleveland. Mrs.
Reublin hated shams—was & woman of
stanch Integrity, warmhearted, and
generous to the poor. 8he died In
Berea,

A MOST LOVABLE WOMAN
ja Mrs. Nancy (Reed) Watson, a long-

‘time resident of Berea, now of Oberlin,

O, Mrs. Watson has been an almost
lifelong member of the Congregational
church—her sweet, Chriastian character
a blessing to all within the charmed
eircle of her Influence, Her only daugh-
ter, Mra, Sarah Pierce, dled in Oberlin.

‘Mr., Wallace, with a famlly of grown
up sone and daughters, came from Ire-
land. Mary married James MeClutchy
and Ann Daniel Hancock. John mar-
ried Jane Hendrlck and Robert, Maria
Brian, of Brunswick, whose home since
her marriage has beeén here. James
married Ellen Moe, of Strongsville, and
moved In 1863 to Detroit, where he died.
James Wallace gave largely to the Ger-
man educational work in Berea. Ger-
man Wallace College will perpetuate
hia memory.

One of the fourteen Morgan chlildren,
of Elizabethtown, N. J., was Lydia, who
married H, Berwick. After a resldence
of several years In New York city they
came to Berea, This bright little wo-
man was much embarrassed the first
time she attended the Methodist meet-
ing. which was held over the old Case
store, Her gloves, shoes, white corded
skirts, and silk dress rendered her pain-
fully conspicuous, and she determined
not to go to meeting again till she could
dress like the Methodist women. But,
no matter how coarse the material or
unconventlonal the cut of her drensses,
she was always distinguished by fine
manners and an unexplalnable style.
Her pleasant home near Berea was en-
livened by several sons and one daugh-
ter, Mrs. Belle Pitch, who resldes near
the old home.
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The Holbrooks, Dwight and Alfred,
7. €. and F. R, Van Tine about 1840
opened up the manulfacture of =chool
pupplies in what war known as the
(Glove Factory. A llttle later Daniel
Stearns moved from Brunswick to Be-
rea and engaged In the atone businessa,
Mra. Mary (MclIntire-French) Stearns
had eight sons and one daughter, Lucy
(Mrs. F. R. Van Tine, of Berea.)

A woman good and true was Mrs. J.
V. Baker. The famlily came In '49.
Their house was an Important station
on the "“underground railroad.” The
daughter, Mra. Lucy Woodbridge,
whose entire life has been spent on the
Reserve, used to ald in secreting fu-
gltive slaves In the house where ghe
still resides,

The wife of Dr. H., Parker, whose
maiden name was Elizabeth Sherwood,
has for nearly fifty years resided In
Berea, where her sterling worth is ap-
preciated by all who know her. Her
only daughter died In Infancy. Mrs.
FParker Is of New England parentage.
Her father drove the first ox team into
Royalton.

Mrs, Jared Farrand, nee Sarah Ran-
dall, was an estimable Christian wo-
man who spent seventeen years of her
life in this community. The worth of
those years is still a felt force. From
early life Mre. Farrand was a faithful
member of the Baptist church, fore-

most In every good work. Four of her
glx children survive her,
‘Mr, Bevans and wife, Mrs. Elliza-

‘bath (Mumford) Bevans, emigrated from
Otsego county, New York, to Ohlo in
1817, Mr=s. Bevans walking much of the
way and

CARRYING HER BABY.

Their first location was in Ashland
county, from which place they came to
Berea soon after the Institote was
opened. Mrs. Bevans had not been
favored with the educational advan-
tages ehe coveted for her children, and
apared no effort to secure for them.
Blessed with such a mother, the two
j.:r!*i: and six daughters attained ma-

r'l-

Caroline, loved and respected by all
who knew her, lived a long and useful
life, and has but recently been called to
her reward. Mary became Mrs., Four-
nier, Juliette Mra. Lyman Baker, Ab-
bie Mrs. Wilson, ‘Mrs. Porter, and Mrs.
Johnson—the last named being the only
survivor of the family. These sisters
inherited pure and noble qualities,
which are still potent for good A
daughter of Mre. Fournier, Mms., Flo-
rence Dwoering, an Intelligent leader in
Christian and educatlonal work, is at
the head of the Berea Literary Club.

Mre. Lacinda (Watkins) Pej
preclous memory, whose birthplac
lL#e, Massg,, had New
tralning and superior educatio
vantages, through whlich was
exceptionally fine che
Her husband, Rev. Willilam C.
was the first conference premhu
to this charge. Thelr first hor
Berea was a sheep shelter, but
ever rude and uncomfortable, 1t o
not long remaln so. Mrs. Peirce he
quisite taste, and innate sensa
pure and beautiful, her home coul
be attractive. As a teacher In Bal
University, she was tenderly loved |
her pupils. Her life was a benedi

Another woman whom to kn
to love for her sweet Christlan
and work's sake, was Mrs. Sllas Clg
(nee Esther Risley, from East Has oT
Conn. The family came to Berea
1846, where Mrs, Clapp's ability as
actlve worker In church and =socl
was soon recognized. Especially s
ful and tender in her care of the s
her services were called for and ch
fully given with a self-forgetfulness
dom witnessed. Who, that ever ex
rienced it, can forget the soothing pre
sure of her hand upon a fevered bro
Her daughters, Jane, Esther, and M
FEmma Leseman, were permitted
minlgter to her in lfe's decline. i
two sons and three daughters of thig
saintly mother have a rich inheritance
of blessed memories.

Among those whom Berea “delights |
honor"” must be classed Mrs. Hanng
(Brown) Janes who, with her Fathe
family, removed from Plymouth, V
to Ann Arbor, Mich., In 1827, Her p=

Brown, the latter a daughter of a Re e
olutionary soldier, Hannah Brown and

her sister, Rebecca, formed the
Methodist Episcopal church in
Arhor, with a class of seven, "Now
must have a preacher,” saild Miss H
nah, and to this effect wrote the pr
lld-in:' elder at Detroit. In response |
this call Rev. John Janes was sent to
Ann Arbor. The young preacher di
not care to look elsewhere for a wifeo
The following yvear they were '?
and appointed to Sandusky clﬂ:ul
where Rev. Janes recelved for his ﬂ .
year's salary $80, while his g _.:
voung wife taught school for $1 per
week., She decided to Invest her ﬂ‘ﬂ -
earnings, 318,

IN A FEATHER

bed, but the man by whom she sent I'o

the goods made off with her money.
ceruel loss. At thirty-filve yvears of
Mrs. Janes was left a widow, with five
children to care for, bur was not the
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to fold her hands and ask
fp‘}f:tn shall I do?” She read law that
ghe might intelligently settle her hus-
pand's estate, moved her family to
Berea, and placed her daughters in
Baldwin Institute, from which Emma
mﬂu&tEﬂ.

Mre, Janes was remarkably endowed,
{mpressing her personality upon all
with whom she assoclated. Her last
residence was Cleveland, where, in the
nome of her daughter, Mary (Mrs. W.
A, Ingham), president of the woman's
department, centennial commission, her
long and well spent earthly life was
gweetly ended.

When Fanny Granger came from
Great Barrington, Mass., to Brunswick,
Medina county, in 1827, to visit her sis-
ter, Mrs, Dr. Sommors, she never
dreamed of returning home the prom-
ised bride of Fletcher Hulet, The
promise was made good, and the first
geventeen years of her married life Mrs,
Hulet spent on the Brunswick farm,
with its still wild surroundings; but at
the opening of Baldwin Institute the

ents came to Berea to educate their
gix children, Martha married Charles
Lyon; Margaret, a beautiful girl of rare
-promise, graduated in '59 ,married Wil-
liam Chappell, and died early; Clara
became the wife of Dr, John Wheeler,
for many years the beloved president

MIDDLEBURG.

of Baldwin University; and Harriet
married T. B. Walker, and resides in
Minneapolis. Gilbert died in early man-
hood, Marshall's home is in the South,

Mrs. Hulet was a superlor woman,
fitted by nature, education, and en-
vironment to grace whatever position
it was her lot to fill, in home or society.
Her quiet dignity and gracious man-
ners were charmingly blent. There was
always room at her table, and a spare
bed for the unexpected guest.

Surely, no one ever made such de-
licious coffee as "“Aunt Fanny.” But
the dear hands have long been folded
in restfulness. Her grave is in our vil-
lage cemetery, but her cherished name
{s in our hearts. Other names, just as
worthy could not be obtalned, hence
do not appear in this sketch, but it
matters little,

For when the books are opened,
They shall glow on pages white,
Where the angels keep the records
With their pens of living light.

HANNAH A. FOSTER, Berea,
Chairman and Historian.

Middleburg committee—Miss Mary
Bigelow, Mrs, Lucy Van Tyne, Miss
Mary Stone, Mrs, Mary E, Elmore, Miss
Lou Peebles, Mrs, J. P. Cole,



Pioneer Women of Middleburg

Last First Page Last First Page Last First Page
Aldrach \Warner 363 Cranes Nancy 363 Hoadley Rev.B. . 362
Andrews Mrs. 363 Dille Mrs. Esther 359 Holbrook Dwight 364
Bailey Mrs. Emeline Eliza 361 Dillingham  |Mrs. Hannah 359 Holbrook Alfred 364
Baker Mrs. Miriam 360 Doering Mrs. Florence 364 Howe Charlotte E. 361
Baker Mrs. J. V. 364 Dorland Mrs. David 363 Hulet Fletcher 365
Baker Mrs. Lyman 364 Doty Lorinda 361 Hulet Martha 365
Baldwin Mother 362 Eggleston Mrs. Sophia 361 Hulet Margaret 365
Baldwin Milton 362 Elders Mrs Sophrona 361 Hulet Clara 365
Baldwin Grandma 362 Elmore Mrs. Mary E. 365 Hulet Harriet 365
Baldwin Jr.  |John 362 Engle Mrs. William 362 Hulet Gilbert 365
Baldwin Sr.  |John 362 Fairchild Mrs. Daniel 360 Hulet Marshall 365
Bassett Mrs. Parley 361 Farrand Mrs. Jared 364 Hutchinson Martha 361
Berwick H. 363 Fitch Mary Ann 363 Ingham Mrw. W. A. 365
Bevans Mr. 364 Foster Hannah A. 365 | [Janes Mrs. Hannah 364
Bevans Mrs. Elizabeth 364 Fournier Mrs. 364 Janes Rev. John 364
Bevans Caroline 364 Fournier Mrs. 364 | [Janes Emma 365
Bevans Mary 364 Fowls Abram 359 Janes Mary 365
Bevans Juliette 364 Fowls Rachel Ann 359 Jemmison Polly 364
Bevans Abby 364 Fowls Lucy 359 Johnson Paddy 363
Bigelow Miss Mary 365 Fowls Mrs. Roxanna 359 Johnson Mrs. 364
Bissett Charles 361 Fraser Mrs. 363 Lathrop Thaddeus 360
Bitlis Sirena 361 Fuller Mr. William 361 Lathrop Susan 360
Bradley Ruth 362 Fuller Samuel 361 lee Mrs. Julia 362
Brian Maria 363 Fuller Mrs. Austin 363 Leseman Mrs. Emma 364
Bronson Mrs. Bela 360 Gardner Mrs. Nathan 359 Lovejoy Solomon 361
Bronson Shalack 360 Gardner Paul 361 Lovejoy Abigail 361
Bronson Olive 360 Gardner Silas 361 Lyon Charles 365
Bronson Harriet 362 Gilruth Mr. 362 McBride Mrs. Dr. 362
Brown Daniel 361 Goss Clark 362 McBride Agnes 362
Brown Godfrey 363 Granger Fanny 365 McBride Lucy 362
Brown Hannah 364 Hancock Daniel 363 McClutchy Mr. & Mrs. (Wallace) | 363
Brown Daniel 364 Hendrick Jane 363 McClutchy James 363
Brown Polly 364 Henry Mrs. Chloe 361 McCullum Mrs. Martha 362
Brown Rebecca 364 Henry Emma 362 Mcintire-French |Mary 364
Castle Levi 360 Hickox Jared 358 Mcintyre Rev. 362
Castle Olive (Bronson) 360 Hickox Mrs. Rachel 358 Meeker Mrs. 360
Chappell Mary D. 362 Hickox Nathaniel 359 Merrill Rachel 358
Chappell William 365 Hickox Rachel Ann 359 Moe Frank 362
Clapp Mrs. Silas 364 Hickox Erl 359 Moe Ellen 363
Clapp Jane 364 Hickox Azor 359 Morgan Lydia 363
Clapp Esther 364 Hickox Jemima 359 Morse Nathaniel 363
Cole Mrs. J. P. 365 Hickox Miriam 359 Morse Laura 363
Cranes James 363 Hickox Mr. Erl 360 Morse Lois 363
Cranes Reason 363 Hickox Nathaniel 360 Morse Mary 363
Cranes John 363 Hoadley Alma 359 Mumford Elizabeth 364
Cranes Elias 363 Hoadley Mrs. Rachel Jemima | 360 Nelson Lucretia M. 363




Pioneer Women of Middleburg

Last First Page Last First Page
Nesbitt Betsey 359 Stearns Mrs. C. M. 362
Norman Mrs. Dr. Van 360 Sterns Daniel 364
Norman Fanny 361 Sterns Mrs. Mary 364
Osborn Mrs. Lucy 359 Sterns Lucy 364
Parker Dr. H. 364 Stone Miss Mary 365
Patterson [Mrs. Rhoda 362 Taft Elizabeth 363
Patterson |Mrs. 363 Thorp Charles 359
Pease Mr. and Mrs. 362 Tinker Fanny 362
Pease Emma 362 Tuttle Benjamin 360
Pease Lucy 362 Van Tine  |Mrs.F.R. 364
Peebles Mrs. Charles 363 Van Tine  [Mrs. Lucy 365
Peebles Harriet 363 Vaughn Ephraim 360
Peebles Miss Lou 365 Vaughn Mrs. Harriet 360
Pierce Mrs. Sarah 363 Vaughn Ephraim 360
Pierce Mrs. Lucinda 364 Vaughn Richard 360
Pierce Rev. William C. 364 Vaughn Jonathan 360
Pitch Mrs. Belle 363 Walker Mrs. Rosanna 362
Pomeroy |Lebbeus 361 Walker T.B. 365
Pomeroy |Mrs Fanny (Norton)[ 361 Wallace James 363
Pomeroy |Melvina 361 Walton Mrs. J. C. 363
Porter Mrs. 364 Ward Rev. Jacob 361
Randall Sarah 364 Watkins Lucinda 364
Reed Nancy 363 Watson Mrs Nancy (Reed) | 363
Remels Lydia 362 Watson Mr. 363
Reublin Mrs. Matthew 363 Watson Mary 363
Reublin Martha 363 Watson Ann 363
Risley Esther 364 Watson John 363
Robbards |[Emma 363 Watson Robert 363
Sabin Mrs. Weltha 360 Watson James 363
Scoville Roswald 360 Wellman  |Mr. Wheeler 361
Sheldon Rev. 362 Wellman  |Mrs. Wheeler 361
Sheldon Mr. 362 Wheeler  |Dr. John 365
Sheldon Rev. H. O. 362 Whitney  |George R. 362
Sheldon Ruth 362 Whitney  |Harriet 362
Sherwood |Elizabeth 364 Whitney  [Mary 362
Simmers  |Mrs. Mary Jane 361 Wilder Mrs. Almira 360
Smith Mr. Daniel 361 Williams  [nancy 361
Smith Mrs. 361 Wilson Mrs. 364

Wood-
Smith Charlotte E. 361 bridge Mrs. Lucy 364
Smith Daniel 361 Wooley Jemima 361
Smith Daniel 363 Wooley Sally 361
Sommors  |Mrs. Dr. 365




